ARKANSAS REGISTER



Proposed Rule Cover Sheet

Secretary of State John Thurston 500 Woodlane Street, Suite 026 Little Rock, Arkansas 72201-1094 (501) 682-5070 www.sos.arkansas.gov



Name of Department Of Inspector General
Agency or Division Name Tax Appeals Commission
Other Subdivision or Department, If Applicable
Previous Agency Name, If Applicable
Contact Person Samantha Blassingame
Contact E-mail Samantha.Blassingame@arkansas.gov
Contact Phone 501-537-1591

Name of Rule Rules of Procedure of the Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission

Newspaper Name Arkansas Democrat-Gazette

Date of Publishing August 4-6, 2024

Final Date for Public Comment September 3, 2024

Location and Time of Public Meeting 900 W. Capitol, Ste 200, Little Rock, 8/20/2024, 2:00 p.m.

PROPOSED REVISIONS

RULES OF PROCEDURE OF THE ARKANSAS TAX APPEALS COMMISSION

Title, Definitions, and Statement of Organization and Operations

Information for Public Guidance and Requests Under the Freedom of Information Act General Organization

Rule-Making

Adjudicative Proceedings

Rulemaking Tax Appeals

Table of Contents

Rule 1 Title, Definitions, and Statement of Organization and Operations
§ 1-101 Title, Effective Date, Severability
§ 1-102 Definitions
§ 1-103 Organization2
§ 1-104 Hours of Operation
Rule 2 Information for Public Guidance and Requests Under the Freedom of Information Act
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
§ 2-101 Freedom of Information Act Requests
§ 2-102 Availability of Forms, Decisions, and Other Documents
Rule 3 General Organization
§ 3-101 Public Meetings
§ 3-102 Adjudicative Meetings4
Rule 4 Rule Making
§ 4-101 Authority4
§ 4-102 Initiating Rule-Making

§ 4-103 Public Comment	5
§ 4-104 Decision to Adopt a Rule	•
§ 4-105 Legislative Approval, Final Filings, and Effective Date	
§ 4-106 Public Inspection and Records	
§ 4-107 Emergency Rules	
Rule 5 Adjudicative Proceedings	
§ 5-101 Applicability	
§ 5-102 Assignment of Proceedings	
§ 5-103 Appearances and Representation	
§ 5-104 In Person Hearings Outside of Little Rock	
§ 5-105 Consolidation	
§ 5-106 Filing and Service	
§ 5-107 Computing Time	
§ 5-108 Noncompliance	
§ 5-109 Ex Parte Communications	
§ 5-201 Appeal Petition	12
§ 5-202 Answer	13
§ 5-203 Reply	14
§ 5-204 Expedited Proceedings	14
§ 5-205 Amended Pleadings	14
§ 5-206 Jurisdictional Objections	15
§ 5-207 Transition from the Department's Office of Hearings and Appeals	15
§ 5-301 Motions	16
§ 5-302 On-Site Observation	18
§ 5-303 No Discovery	18
§ 5-401 Hearing Scheduling	18
§ 5-402 Hearing Procedures	18
§ 5-403 Stipulation	19
§ 5-404 Evidence	20
§ 5-405 Recording of Hearing	20
§ 5-406 Failure to ∧ppear at Hearing	20
§ 5-501 Issuance of Decision to the Parties	21
§ 5-502 Redaction and Publication of Decision	21

§ 5-601 Scope and Application of Electronic Filing	22
§ 5-602 Time of Filing, Confirmation, and File-Mark	22
§ 5-603 Signatures	23
§ 5-604 Format of Documents	23
§ 5-605 Registration Requirements	23
§ 5-606 Technical Failures	23
Rule 1 Title, Definitions, and Statement of Organization and Operations	<u></u> 1
§ 1-101 Title, Severability	1
§ 1-102 Definitions	
§ 1-103 Organization	
§ 1-104 Hours of Operation	
Rule 2 Information for Public Guidance and Requests Under the Freedom of Information Act	
§ 2-101 Freedom of Information Act Requests	<u></u> 3
§ 2-102 Availability of Forms, Decisions, and Other Documents	<u></u> 3
Rule 3 General Organization	4
§ 3-101 Public Meetings	4
§ 3-102 Adjudicative Meetings	<u></u> 4
Rule 4 Rulemaking	5
§ 4-101 Authority	
§ 4-102 Initiating Rulemaking.	
§ 4-103 Public Comment	<u></u> 5
§ 4-104 Decision to Adopt a Rule	<u></u> 6
§ 4-105 Legislative Approval, Final Filings, and Effective Date	
§ 4-106 Public Inspection and Records	
§ 4-107 Emergency Rules	
Rule 5 Tax Appeals	
§ 5-101 Applicability	
§ 5-102 Assignment of Cases	
§ 5-103 Appearances and Representation	

§ 5-104 In-Person Hearings Outside of Little Rock	<u></u> 9
§ 5-105 Consolidation	<u></u> 9
§ 5-106 Filing and Service	10
§ 5-107 Computing Time	<u></u> 11
§ 5-108 Noncompliance	<u></u> 11
§ 5-109 Ex Parte Communications.	<u></u> 11
§ 5-201 Appeal Petition	<u></u> 12
§ 5-202 Answer	13
§ 5-203 Reply	<u></u> 14
§ 5-204 Expedited Cases.	
§ 5-205 Amended Pleadings	<u></u> 15
§ 5-206 Jurisdictional Objections or Deficiencies	<u></u> 15
§ 5-301 Motions	<u></u> 16
§ 5-302 Case Management	18
§ 5-303 On-Site Observation	<u></u> 19
§ 5-304 No Discovery	<u></u> 19
§ 5-305 Closure of Record in Written Submissions Cases	<u></u> 19
§ 5-401 Hearing Scheduling	<u></u> 19
§ 5-402 Pre-Hearing, Hearing, and Post-Hearing Procedures	20
§ 5-403 Stipulation	<u></u> 21
§ 5-404 Evidence.	<u></u> 21
§ 5-405 Recording of Hearing.	<u></u> 22
§ 5-406 Failure to Appear at Hearing or Prosecute Case	22
§ 5-407 Bifurcation of Proceedings	<u></u> 22
§ 5-501 Issuance of Decision to the Parties.	<u>2</u> 3
§ 5-502 Redaction and Publication of Decision	23
§ 5-503 En Banc Decisions.	<u></u> 24
§ 5-601 Scope and Application of Electronic Filing	24
§ 5-602 Time of Filing	<u></u> 25
§ 5-603 Signatures	<u></u> 25
§ 5-604 Format of Documents	25

§ 5-605 Registration Requirements.	<u></u> 25
§ 5-606 Technical Failures	26

Rule 1 Title, Definitions, and Statement of Organization and Operations

§ 1-101 Title, Effective Date, Severability

- (a) The following Rules 1 through 5 shall be known as the Rules of Procedure of the Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission.
- (b) These rules shall be effective December 10, 2022, or ten (10) days after filing with the Secretary of State, whichever is later.
- (e(b)) The provisions of these rules are severable. If any provision or its application is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application.

§ 1-102 Definitions

As used in these rules, these terms have the following meanings:

- (a) "Authorized representative" means an individual authorized by a party to act on the party's behalf in <u>proceedingscases</u> before the Commission in accordance with § 5-103.
- (b) "Clerk" means the employee of the Commission designated by the Chief Commissioner to act as Clerk of the Commission.
 - (e(b) "Commission" means the Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission.
 - (dc) "Days" means calendar days unless otherwise specified.
- (ed) "Department" means the Arkansas Department of Finance and Administration.
- (fe) "Expedited proceedingcase" means an adjudicative proceeding case required by law to be expedited with a shorter petition deadline, hearing deadline, decision deadline, or a combination thereof.
- (gf) "Presiding Commissioner" means the Commissioner designated by the Chief Commissioner to preside over an adjudicative proceeding case as provided in § 5-102.
 - (hg) "Taxpayer" means an individual or entity that:
 - (1) Is challenging the state's taxing jurisdiction; or
 - (2) Has standing to challenge a decision by the Department:
 - (A) Imposing liability for a tax, penalty, or interest;
 - (B) Denying a credit or deduction;

- (C) Denying a refund, credit, or incentive claim or application;
- (D) Canceling, refusing, or revoking a license or permit under Arkansas Code §§ 26-18-601, 26-52-803, 26-55-219, 26-55-224, 26-55-231, 26-56-204, 26-56-311, 26-57-413, 26-57-419, or 26-62-204;
 - (E) Closing a business;
 - (F) Relating to a jeopardy assessment;
 - (G) Seizing a vending device or a coin-operated amusement device;

(H) Taking any other action that provides a right to a hearing with the Commission under state law.

§ 1-103 Organization

or

- (a) The Commission is an independent agency with tax expertise to resolve tax disputes between the Department and Taxpayers. The Commission was created by Act 586 of the 2021 regular session, the Independent Tax Appeals Commission Act, Arkansas Code § 26-18-1101 et seq.
- (b) The Legislature has authorized the Commission to adjudicate certain disputes between Taxpayers and the Department.
- (c)(1) The individual Commission is comprised of three Commissioners appointed by the Governor.
- (2) The Governor designates one of the Commissioners as Chief

 Commissioner and can change the designation at any time. The Chief Commissioner is charged with administration of the Commission—is the Chief Commissioner, who is appointed by the Governor. There are two additional Commissioners, also appointed by the Governor.
- (d) The Commission is an independent agency within the Department of Inspector General.
- (e) The Commission principally adjudicates tax disputes. From time to time, the Commission promulgates rules relating to its procedures.

§ 1-104 Hours of Operation

The Commission's office hours shall be 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, except state legal holidays.

Rule 2 Information for Public Guidance and Requests Under the Freedom of Information Act

§ 2-101 Freedom of Information Act Requests

- (a)(1) The Commission employs persons holding certain responsibilities for handling Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) requests or other questions so that the public may obtain information about the Commission or make submissions or requests.
- (2) Commission adjudicative hearings and associated files, proceedings, and records are confidential, closed to the public, and exempt from the FOIA. Arkansas Code § 26-18-1115.
- (b) The names, mailing addresses, telephone numbers, and electronic addresses for handling FOIA requests or other informational inquiries may be obtained from the Commission's office or website, www.tac.arkansas.gov.

§ 2-102 Availability of Forms, Decisions, and Other Documents

- (a) The Commission maintains a list and copies of official forms used by the Commission and formal, written statements of policy issued by the Commission, which may be obtained from the Commission's office or website.
- (b) The Commission indexes and publishes redacted decisions resulting from adjudications on its website.

Rule 3 General Organization

§ 3-101 Public Meetings

- (a) The Chief Commissioner presides over public meetings or may designate another Commissioner to preside.
 - (b) The Commission will hold public meetings for rule-making. rulemaking.
- (1) All public meetings are conducted in conformity with the Arkansas Freedom of Information Act.
 - (2) All public meetings will be specially scheduled.
- (3) Special meetings are held on the call of the Chief Commissioner or two (2)-Commissioners.
- (c) A quorum for the transaction of business in non-adjudicative matters is all three Commissioners, or two Commissioners if there is a vacancy on the Commission.
 - (d) Meeting agenda.
 - (1) The Chief Commissioner will prepare the agenda for public meetings.
- (2) The order of the agenda items is intended to be flexible and may be adjusted to meet the needs of the Commission.
 - (3) Additionally, the agenda may be amended by appropriate motion.

§ 3-102 Adjudicative Meetings

A meeting of the Commission in connection with adjudication of one or more matters is confidential, closed to the public, and not publicly announced. Arkansas Code § 26-18-1115. Adjudications are further addressed in Rule 5.

Rule 4 Rule-Making Rulemaking

§ 4-101 Authority

- (a) The purpose of this rule is to inform the public how to initiate rule-making rulemaking and how to comment on a proposed rule.
- (b) The Commission has been authorized by the General Assembly to promulgate rules. Arkansas Code §§ 25-15-203, 25-15-215, 26-18-1112, 26-18-1115, 26-18-1120.
- (c) In <u>rule-making</u>rulemaking, the Commission follows the procedural requirements of the Arkansas Administrative Procedure Act, specifically Arkansas Code §§ 25-15-203, 25-15-204, and 25-15-218; Arkansas Code § 10-3-309; and any Executive Order of the Governor applicable at the time that <u>rule-making</u> is initiated.
- (d) This rule does not provide a comprehensive description of the entire rule-making process.

§ 4-102 Initiating Rule-Making Rulemaking

- (a) The process of adopting a new rule or amending or repealing an existing rule (hereinafter referred to as "rule-making") may be initiated:
 - (1) At the request of the Commission; or
- (2) By third persons outside the Commission, who may petition for the issuance, amendment, or repeal of any rule in accordance with <u>Ark.Arkansas</u> Code § 25-15-204. The petition to initiate <u>rule makingrulemaking</u> must contain:
- (A) The name, address, telephone number, and email address of the petitioner and the petitioner's attorney, if represented by counsel;
 - (B) The specific rule or action requested;
 - (C) The reasons for the rule or action requested;
- (D) Facts showing that the petitioner is regulated by the Commission or has a substantial interest in the rule or action requested; and
 - (E) The date of the request.

§ 4-103 Public Comment

- (a) If the Commission proceeds with the <u>rule-making</u> process, it will provide the public with a reasonable opportunity to comment on a proposed rule.
 - (b) The public comment period will last at least thirty (30) days.

- (c) The Commission will begin the public comment period by publishing notice of the proposed <u>rule-makingrulemaking</u>.
- (1) The notice will include the terms or substance of the proposed rule, or a description of the subjects and issues involved.
- (2) The notice will include a description of the time, location, and manner in which interested parties may submit their views.
- (3) The notice will be published in compliance with Arkansas Code § 25-15-204. The Commission shall also publish the notice and the draft rules on its website.
- (d) If the Commission chooses to or is required to hold a hearing at which the public may appear and comment on the proposed rule, such hearing will comply with the requirements of Arkansas Code § 25-15-213.
- (e) The Commission shall accept and consider public comments as required by Arkansas Code § 25-15-204.
- (f) The Commission shall track and respond to public comments as necessary to comply with Arkansas Code § 25-15-204(a)(2) and the rules of the Administrative Rules Subcommittee of Legislative Council.

§ 4-104 Decision to Adopt a Rule

- (a) The Commission will not finalize language of the rule or decide whether to adopt a rule until the period for public comment has expired.
- (b) Prior to adoption, the Commission will consider the factors described in Arkansas Code § 25-15-204.
- (c) The Commission may use its own experience, specialized knowledge, and judgment in the adoption of a rule.

§ 4-105 Legislative Approval, Final Filings, and Effective Date

- (a) After the necessary legislative approvals are obtained, the Commission will file the final rule with the Secretary of State.
- (b) The final rule will be effective ten (10) days after filing with the Secretary of State unless a later date is specified in the rule itself or by law.

§ 4-106 Public Inspection and Records

(a) After the expiration of the thirty (30) day public comment period and before the effective date of the rule, the Commission shall take appropriate measures to make the final rule known to the persons who may be affected by the rule, pursuant to the specifications in Arkansas Code § 25-15-204.

- (b) The Commission's rules shall be available for public inspection at its business address and on its website, www.tac.arkansas.gov.
- (c) The Commission shall maintain copies of all filings and documentation associated with <u>rule-makingrulemaking</u> as necessary to comply with the Arkansas General Record Retention Schedule.

§ 4-107 Emergency Rules

- (a) Need for Emergency Rule
- (1) The Commission may enact an emergency rule if it finds that an imminent peril to the public health, safety, or welfare, or that compliance with a law or regulation, requires the adoption of a rule on less than thirty (30) days' notice.
 - (2) The Commission shall state in writing its reasons for that finding.
 - (b) Filings and Effective Date of Emergency Rule.
- (1) The Commission will follow the process required by Arkansas Code § 25-15-204 and any applicable Executive Order of the Governor to enact an emergency rule.
- (2) After receiving approval from both the Governor and the Legislature, an emergency rule may become effective immediately upon filing with the Secretary of State or at a stated time less than ten (10) days after filing if the Commission finds that such effective date is necessary due to imminent peril to the public health, safety, or welfare.
- (3) The Commission will take appropriate measures to notify those who may be affected by the Emergency Rule.

Rule 5 Adjudicative Proceedings Tax Appeals

§ 5-101 Applicability

- (a) This rule applies in all administrative adjudications conducted by the Commission and describes the process by which the Commission adjudicates hears appeal petitions challenging decisions of the Department within the jurisdiction of the Commission.
 - (b) The Commission may determine the parties' compliance with this rule.
- (c) Unless a statute or rule expressly precludes it, the presiding Commissioner may waive application of these rules if, in the Commissioner's discretion, fairness requires.

§ 5-102 Assignment of Proceedings Cases

(a) The (a) Once a Petition is filed with the Commission, the Chief Commissioner or staff of the Commission at the Chief Commissioner's direction shall designate a Presiding Commissioner and assign the proceedingcase to one Commissioner or to all available Commissioners sitting en banc, depending on the nature and significance of the proceeding. case.

(b) It is presumed that:

- (1) A controversy involving twenty-five thousand dollars (\$25,000) or less, exclusive of interest and penalties, should be assigned to one (1) Commissioner;
- (2) A controversy involving <u>an</u> expedited <u>proceedingscase</u> under § 5-204 should be assigned to one (1) Commissioner; and
- (3) A controversy involving over two hundred fifty thousand dollars (\$250,000), exclusive of interest and penalties, should be assigned to all Commissioners sitting en banc.

(b) Presidingc) The Chief Commissioner. may reassign a case.

- (1) For(d) A party may request en banc proceedings, consideration by filing a motion under § 5-301. Such motion shall be decided by the Chief Commissioner shall preside at after consulting with the hearing or may designate another Commissioner to preside at the hearing.
- (2) For proceedings assigned to a single Presiding Commissioner, that Commissioner shall preside at the hearing.

§ 5-103 Appearances and Representation

- (a) Any Taxpayer appearing in a Commission adjudicative proceeding has the right, at his or her own expense, to be represented by an authorized representative, who can be an attorney, certified public accountant, or any other individual. Alternatively, the Taxpayer may appear on his or her own behalf, including appearance by an owner or officer of an entity Taxpayer.
- (b) A Taxpayer's authorized representative must have a completed <u>Power of Attorney form</u> on file with the Commission before representing a Taxpayer in <u>an adjudicative proceeding.a case.</u> The Commission's form must be used. <u>Until a completed Power of Attorney form</u> is filed, the Commission and the Department shall communicate directly with the <u>Taxpayer</u>.
- (c) The Department shall be represented by an authorized representative licensed to practice law in the state of Arkansas. The Department is not required to obtain approval from the Commission for substitution of representatives.
- (d) Service on an authorized representative is the equivalent of service on the party represented.
- (e) On written motion served on the party represented and all other parties of record, the Presiding Commissioner may grant a Taxpayer's authorized representative leave to withdraw.

§ 5-104 In-Person Hearings Outside of Little Rock

- (a) The Commission may arrange for the use of state or local government facilities to allow it to conduct hearings throughout the state.
- (b) A Taxpayer may request, in writing in the petition or on motion, to have an in-person hearing at a location more convenient than Little Rock.
- (c) The Presiding Commissioner may grant such request or may require that the Taxpayer choose between an in-person hearing in Little Rock, a teleconference, or a videoconference.
 - (d) The Department may elect to appear by teleconference or videoconference.

§ 5-105 Consolidation

(a) If there are separate matters that involve similar issues of law or fact and identical or related parties, the matters may be consolidated if it appears that consolidation would promote the just, speedy, and inexpensive resolution of the proceedingscases and would not unduly prejudice the rights of a party, including the Taxpayer's right to confidentiality.

(b) A Presiding Commissioner may deconsolidate due to changed circumstances.

§ 5-106 Filing and Service

- (a) Unless a filing is rejected by the Commission, a document is deemed filed on the earlier of:
- (1) The date the document was submitted electronically via the electronic filing system; or
- (2) The date the document is received in paper format by the Commission at its office during the hours of operation in § 1-104, whether by in-person delivery, United States Mail, or otherwise.
- (b) A filing that is delivered to the Commission by United States Mail after the deadline shall be deemed filed as of the postmark date.
- (c) The Commission shall establish a system for electronic filing and service. See § 5-601 et seq.
- (ed) Every pleading, except for the appeal petition, and every other document filed for the proceedingcase shall be served by the filing party on the other party's authorized representative or, if the party is not represented, on the party itself. Service shall be to the address provided by the authorized representative or party.
- (1) If both parties or their authorized representatives are users of the Commission's electronic filing system, service shall be byas directed under the electronic filing system.
- (2) If either the sending or the receiving party is not a user of the electronic filing system, then service on the party shall be by:
 - (A) First class mail;
 - (B) Hand delivery; or
 - (C) Email if agreed to in writing by the parties.
- —(3) The Taxpayer shall not serve the appeal petition on the Department. Service by the Taxpayer of the appeal petition upon the Department shall be void. The petition is served on the Department by the Commission within fifteen (15) days of the filing date of the petition-electronically or, if the Commission cannot serve the petition on the Department electronically, by hand-delivery.
- (de) A party or authorized representative shall file with the Commission a notice of any change of address, phone number, or email address within ten (10) days of such change.

§ 5-107 Computing Time

- (a) Any period of time set forth in these rules or in the Independent Tax Appeals Commission Act, Arkansas Code § 26-18-1101 et seq., unless otherwise provided by law, shall begin on the first day following the day of the act that initiates the period.
- (b) When the last day of the time period is a day on which the Commission is closed, the period shall run until the end of the next business day.
- (c) For the purpose of computing time to respond, any document served on a day when the Commission is closed shall be deemed served on the next business day.

§ 5-108 Noncompliance

- (a) If a <u>Petition, Answer, Reply, or other</u> document is timely <u>submittedfiled</u> but <u>determined by the presiding Commissioner to be</u> noncompliant, the party shall <u>have</u> ten (10be allowed fourteen (14) days <u>from the date of notice</u> to cure; <u>except that, for cure of a Power of Attorney, thirty (30) days shall be allowed. The presiding Commissioner may extend the deadline.</u> The corrected document shall be deemed filed on the date originally submitted.
- (b) Any deadline to Answer, Reply, or otherwise respond to a filing is automatically tolled pending cure of the noncompliant filing.
- (c) After the cure period has expired, a Petition, Answer, Reply or other document that is noncompliant may be rejected by the Commission.

§ 5-109 Ex Parte Communications

- (a) A Commissioner shall not initiate, permit, or consider ex parte communications or other communications made outside the presence of the parties or their representatives concerning a pending or impending matter.
- (b) When circumstances require it, non-substantive communication for scheduling, administrative, or emergency purposes is permitted, provided the Commissioner reasonably believes that no party will gain a procedural, substantive, or tactical advantage.
- (c) A Commissioner may consult with other Commissioners or with employees of the Commission or the Department of Inspector General, provided the Commissioner does not abrogate the responsibility personally to decide the matter.
- (d) If a Commissioner receives an unauthorized ex parte communication bearing upon the substance of a matter, the Commissioner shall notify the parties of the substance of the communication and provide the parties with an opportunity to respond.

(e) The parties shall not communicate or cause communication with employees of the Department of Inspector General regarding confidential proceedingscases, except in connection with such officers or employees providing technical or administrative support to the Commission.

§ 5-201 Appeal Petition

- (a)(1) Only a Taxpayer or a Taxpayer's authorized representative can file an appeal petition. The definition of "Taxpayer" limits petitions to protesting certain actions or decisions of the Department that have become final or without more will become final after the expiration of time, such as a proposed assessment or a refund claim denial.
- (2) The Commission cannot hear a petition protesting an interim Department action such as day-to-day administration of an ongoing audit.
- (b) The Taxpayer is responsible for meeting the petition deadline, and the Commission cannot extend petition deadlines.
- (1) Unless otherwise provided by law, petitions must be filed within ninety (90) days of the date of the action or decision of the Department.
- (2) Certain actions of the Department can result in expedited proceedingscases that impose petition deadlines as short as five <u>business</u> (5) days. The petition shall indicate whether <u>proceedings are the case is</u> required to be expedited. See § 5-204, Expedited <u>ProceedingsCases</u>.
- (c)(1) The Commission encourages Taxpayers to submit petitions online at its website. An appeal petition shall be filed using the <u>Petition formPetition form</u> approved by the Commission or in such other form prepared by the Taxpayer.
 - (2) Regardless of the form used, the petition shall:
- (A) State facts sufficiently clear to identify the Taxpayer, including name and address, and the Taxpayer's reasons for opposing the proposed assessment, denial of a claim for refund, or other action of the Department, including the relief sought; and
- (B) Reasonably specify the matter, including <u>identifying</u> the relevant Department account <u>ID₇</u>, <u>and other identifying information</u> for consideration by the Commission.
- (3) An appeal petition that is filed without the form or forms approved by the Commission shall be supplemented with the prescribed form for use as a cover sheet. The Clerk may prepare this form.

- (d) The petition shall include whether the Taxpayer elects for the hearing to be in person, by teleconference, by videoconference, or by a combination thereof, or no hearing with the matter to be decided solely on written submissions.
- (e) Petitions should not be made regarding the following, for which the Commission does not have jurisdiction:
- (1) A tax that is excepted from the Arkansas Tax Procedure Act under Arkansas Code § 26-18-102;
- (2) A question regarding the constitutionality of the application of statutes to a Taxpayer or the constitutionality of rules promulgated by the Department;
- (3) A claim against enforcement of an illegal exaction under Arkansas Constitution, Article 16, § 13;
- (4) A claim for which the Office of Hearings and Appeals has already issued an administrative decision or held a prehearing or hearing;
 - (5) A claim that is the subject of pending litigation; or
- (6) A claim for a tax not administered by the Department, including without limitation the following: local ad valorem property tax, local advertising and promotion tax on lodging or restaurants, federal tax, tax of another state, or tax of a foreign country.
- (7) An appeal from a final assessment for which a notice of proposed assessment was previously issued.

§ 5-202 Answer

- (a) The Department shall file an answer to an appeal petition within sixty (60) days of receipt of the petition from the Commission.
 - (b) An answer is not required in an expedited hearing. See § 5-204.
- (c) The answer shall state the Department's reasons for opposing the Petition, in all or in part, such that the Commission can understand the Department's position in the dispute and the Taxpayer can fairly reply.
- (d) An answer shall not be filed in lieu of a motion for voluntary dismissal or for withdrawal from consideration. See § 5-301.

§ 5-203 Reply

The Taxpayer may respond to the answer by filing a reply within thirty (30) days of service of the answer but is not required to do so. A reply may not exceed the scope of the petition or answer.

§ 5-204 Expedited Proceedings Cases

- (a) Certain types of <u>proceedingscases</u> are required by law to be heard on an expedited basis, including shortened petition deadlines. <u>See the Appeal Petition for Expedited Proceeding form.</u>
- (b) The petition shall indicate that it is a type of proceeding that must be expedited by filing the Appeal Petition for Expedited Proceeding form.
- (c) Upon filing a petition for an expedited proceeding, the Taxpayer or Taxpayer's authorized representative shall call the Clerk to notify the Commission of the need to expedite the proceedings.
- (d) If the Taxpayer or Taxpayer's authorized representative fails to notify the Commission of the need to expedite the proceedings, and the Commission subsequently determines that the matter should be expedited, then the Commission shall expedite the matter.
- (e) For an expedited <u>proceedingcase</u>, the hearing, <u>if any</u>, shall be scheduled within the applicable deadline after the petition is filed, and no other pleadings are required. The Department may elect to file an answer.
- (d) Joint refund offset cases under Arkansas Code § 26-36-315 have specific requirements:
 - (1) The petition must include the following items:
 - (A) A copy of the notice of refund offset at issue.
 - (B) The signature of the nondebtor taxpayer to the petition.
- (C) A certification from the claimant agency that the nondebtor taxpayer is not a debtor of the claimant agency.
- (i) This certification may use the form promulgated by the Commission or other form of certification issued by the agency.
- (ii) The Commission may provide a Taxpayer with the relevant claimant agency contact information for obtaining this certification.

- (D) Tax documentation necessary to determine each taxpayer's proportionate share of the refund. In general, copies of the full Arkansas income tax return and all W-2s or other documentation showing sources of income and tax payment are needed.
- (2) Taxpayers cannot petition the Commission to dispute the validity or amount of the debt to the claimant agency.

§ 5-205 Amended Pleadings

- (a) The Taxpayer may amend the appeal petition at any time before the period for filing an answer expires, once per petition.
- (b) The Department may amend the answer at any time before the period for filing a reply expires, once per answer.
- (c) Either party may amend a petition, answer, or reply after the period for responding to a pleading, if any, expires:
 - (1) With the written consent of the adverse party; or
 - (2) With the permission of the Commission.
- (d) An amended petition shall not confer jurisdiction on a matter that would otherwise not come within the jurisdiction of the Commission, including matters that are time-barred.
- (e) Upon filing of an amended pleading, the Commission shall provide deadlines to the parties for filing an answer, reply, or both, as applicable.

§ 5-206 Jurisdictional Objections or Deficiencies

- (a) The Department may raise a jurisdictional (1) Any objection to a proceeding Commission jurisdiction shall be raised by filing a motion to dismiss under § 5-301.
 - (2) The Commission may raise a jurisdictional matter on its own.
- (b) If the motion is filed within thirty (30) days after service of the petition, then All case deadlines, including the deadline for the Department to file thean answer shall be, are automatically tolled upon the filing of the motion such a motion to dismiss or the Commission's notice or order raising a jurisdictional matter.
- (c) For a <u>proceedingcase</u> assigned to the Commission en banc, whether the Commission has jurisdiction shall be decided en banc. For a <u>proceedingcase</u> assigned to a single Commissioner, that Commissioner shall decide.

- (d)(1) After notice and an opportunity for a response, if it is determined that the Commission lacks jurisdiction, the case shall be dismissed and an order of dismissal entered. The order of dismissal shall explain the legal basis for dismissal and shall be published under § 5-502.
- (2) If it is determined that the Commission has jurisdiction, at least in part, then an order shall be issued, including setting the deadline for any answer, and the case shall proceed. Any jurisdictional objection and the decision thereon shall be explained in the subsequent decision on the merits under § 5-501.

§ 5-207 Transition from the Department's Office of Hearings and Appeals

- (a) If an action or decision occurring before January 1, 2023, has been protested to the Department's Office of Hearings and Appeals, and neither a prehearing nor hearing has been held, the Taxpayer may convert the proceeding to the Commission by filing an appeal petition under § 5-201 on or after the effective date of these Rules.
- (1) The petition shall include a copy of the protest to the Office of Hearings and Appeals and may include additional substantive filings by the Taxpayer in that proceeding, such as an answer to an information request.
 - (2) The Commission shall serve the appeal petition on the Department.
- (3) Petitions submitted to the Commission before the effective date of these rules shall not be accepted.
- (b) The Department shall answer under § 5-202. The answer may include copies of any substantive filings by the Department in that proceeding, such as an answer to an information request.
- (c) Thereafter, the converted proceeding shall be conducted like other proceedings before the Commission, including the Taxpayer's option to reply under § 5-203.

§ 5-301 Motions

- (a) All requests for relief shall be by motion.
 - (1) Motions must be in writing or made during a hearing. or conference.
- (2) Motions must fully state the action requested and the grounds relied upon.
- (3) Written motions shall be filed with the Commission and served on the opposing party, consistent with § 5-106.

- (4) When time allows, the other party may, within seven (7) days of the service of the written motion, file a response in opposition.
- (5) When time allows, within seven (7) days of the service of the response, the moving party may, but is not required to, file a reply.
- (6) The Commission may grant any motion not responded to without further notice.
- (7) The Presiding Commissioner may conduct such proceedings and enter such orders as are deemed necessary to address issues raised by the motion.
- (8) A party that disputes the Commission's jurisdiction or authority shall not file a notice or other document declaring limitations of the Commission's jurisdiction or authority. Any such dispute shall be brought before the Commission by appropriate motion.
 - (b) A motion for summary judgment is not allowed.
- (c) The Presiding Commissioner may grant a motion for continuance of a hearing or extension of a deadline for good cause shown, except that the Commission cannot extend an appeal petition deadline. A request for the extension of a deadline shallshould be filed prior to the expiration of the original deadline. Failure, but failure to timely file shall not preclude the Presiding Commissioner from extending a deadline. Stipulations of the parties for continuances will not be recognized.
- (1) Such a motion shall be made in writing: or made during a hearing or conference.
- (2) The motion must state the grounds to be considered and be made as soon as practicable and for hearings, except in cases of emergencies, no later than five (5) days prior to the date noticed for the hearing.
- (3) In determining whether to grant a continuance or extension, the Presiding Commissioner may consider:
 - (A) Prior continuances or extensions;
 - (B) The interests of all parties;
 - (C) The likelihood of informal settlements;
 - (D) The existence of an emergency;
 - (E) Any objection;
 - (F) Any applicable time requirement;

- (G) The existence of a conflict of the schedules of parties, their authorized representatives, or witnesses;
 - (H) The time limits of the request; and
 - (I) Other relevant factors.
- (4) The Presiding Commissioner may require documentation of any grounds for continuance or extension.
- (d) A request from a party that is not styled as a motion may be deemed a motion by the Presiding Commissioner.
- (e)(1) A party or parties may move for voluntary dismissal or withdrawal from consideration based on:
 - (A) Department withdrawal of the action or decision at issue;
 - (B) Taxpayer withdrawal of the petition;
 - (C) Settlement by the parties under Arkansas Code § 26-18-1111;
 - (D) Mootness; or
- (E) Any other resolution such that the Commission does not need to reach a decision or jurisdictional dismissal in the case.
- (2) The filing of such a motion automatically tolls any pending case deadlines, including the deadline for the Department to file an answer.

§ 5-302 <u>Case Management</u>

- (a) In any case, the Presiding Commissioner may direct the parties to appear for a conference.
 - (b) This conference may consider:
 - (1) The simplification of issues;
 - (2) The status of efforts to stipulate pursuant to § 5-403;
- (3) The necessity or desirability of amendments to the petition, answer, or reply;
 - (4) The possibility of settlement;
 - (5) The scheduling of the hearing and other case events or deadlines; and
 - (6) Such other matters as may aid in the disposition of the action.

(c) After the conference, the Presiding Commissioner may make an order which recites the action taken at the conference, any amendments allowed to the pleadings and the agreements made by the parties as to any of the matters considered and which limits the issues for hearing to those not disposed of by stipulation or other agreement of the parties; and such order, when entered, controls the subsequent course of the case, unless subsequently modified.

§ 5-303 On-Site Observation

- (a) The Commission may conduct on-site observation of tangible personal property, real property, and activities that are relevant to a controversy.
- (b) On-site observation may occur only with the consent of the Taxpayer and with all parties invited to observe and record.

§ 5-303(c) A party may request on-site observation by motion. See § 5-301.

§ 5-304 No Discovery

- (a) There is no discovery in Commission adjudications, including without limitation: interrogatories, requests for admission, requests for production, depositions, and requests for inspections.
- (b) Neither the Commission nor a party or authorized representative shall issue subpoenas to the parties or outside parties in connection with proceedingscases before the Commission.
- (c) A Taxpayer may contact the Department if the Taxpayer wants to obtain his or her tax records. The Commission does not hear disputes concerning the production of documents by the Department under the Freedom of Information Act of 1967, Arkansas Code § 25-19-101 et seq., or Arkansas Code § 26-18-403.

§ 5-305 Closure of Record in Written Submissions Cases

- (a) For non-expedited cases to be decided on written submissions without a hearing, after the reply has been filed or the deadline to do so has passed under § 5-203, the Commission shall schedule the closure of the written record, as a deadline for briefs, motions, or other submissions.
- (b) Once the record is closed, the deadline for the Commission to issue a decision shall commence.

§ 5-401 Hearing Scheduling

(a) The Presiding Commissioner shall schedule the hearing, which, except in expedited proceedingscases, shall be held within ninety (90) days of the date the reply

was filed or the expiration of the deadline to file the reply. For expedited proceedingscases, see § 5-204.

- (b) A Notice of Hearing shall be provided to the parties within thirty (30) days of the filing of the reply or the expiration of the deadline to file a reply.
- (c) The Presiding Commissioner may order hearing by a means other than the means elected by the taxpayer for good cause, or when it is in the interest of justice.

§ 5-402 Pre-Hearing, Hearing, and Post-Hearing Procedures

- (a) The Presiding Commissioner presides at the hearing, <u>presides over prehearing</u>, <u>post-hearing</u>, <u>and other case conferences and matters</u>, <u>including if a hearing has been waived altogether</u>, and may rule on motions, require briefs, and issue such orders as will ensure the orderly conduct of the <u>proceedingscase</u>.
- (b) Parties have the right to participate or to be represented by an authorized representative in all hearings or <u>pre-hearing conferencesother proceedings</u> related to their <u>proceeding</u>. <u>Refer to § 5-102appeal</u>.
- (e(c) Pre-hearing conferences and reports may be delegated by the Presiding Commissioner to Commission staff, provided that staff may not rule on motions.
- (d) Parties have the right to introduce evidence that is probative of material fact, cross-examine witnesses as necessary for a full and true disclosure of the facts, and present evidence in rebuttal.
- (de)(1) The parties shall disclose Presiding Commissioner may require disclosure of all witnesses, identifying those witnesses who may testify and those expected to testify, at least ten (10) days prior toby a specified date in advance of the hearing unless otherwise specified by order.
- (e(2) Advance disclosure of witnesses is never required in expedited cases under § 5-204.
- (f) The Presiding Commissioner is charged with maintaining the decorum of the hearing and may refuse to admit, or may expel, anyone whose conduct is disorderly. The Presiding Commissioner may limit the time allowed for arguments.
- (fg) The Presiding Commissioner will conduct the hearing in the following manner:
- (1) The parties will be allowed to present their cases in the sequence determined by the Presiding Commissioner, taking into consideration the burden of proof.

- (2) Each witness must be sworn or affirmed by the Presiding Commissioner and be subject to examination and cross-examination as well as questioning by Commissioners. The Presiding Commissioner may limit questioning in a manner consistent with the law.
- (3) An authorized representative serving as an advocate, such as an attorney or consultant, shall not provide testimony. However, an officer, trustee, partner, or similar representative may provide testimony for a Taxpayer that is not an individual.

§ 5-403 Stipulation

- (a) The parties to a proceedingcase shall, in good faith, make every reasonable effort to stipulate all relevant and nonprivileged facts to the fullest extent to which a complete or qualified agreement can or fairly should be reached.
 - (b) The Commission may makedecide a decision case based on stipulated facts.
 - (c) Efforts to stipulate are not required in expedited cases under § 5-204.
- (d) If the amount of tax in dispute is less than ten thousand dollars (\$10,000), it is presumed that efforts to stipulate are not reasonable and thus unnecessary, unless the Presiding Commissioner specifies otherwise.

§ 5-404 Evidence

- (a) The Presiding Commissioner shall admit relevant evidence, including hearsay, if it is probative of a material fact in controversy.
 - (b) Irrelevant, immaterial, and unduly repetitive evidence shall be excluded.
- (c) A party seeking admission of an exhibit must provide four (4) copies of each exhibit at the hearing, or six (6) copies for an en banc hearing, unless the party submits the exhibit electronically in a manner approved by the Presiding Commissioner. All exhibits admitted into evidence must be appropriately marked.
- (d) Exhibits for the hearing shall be filed with the Commission and served on the opposing party or authorized representative at least five (5) days prior to the hearing, except in the case of expedited proceedings under § 5-204.
- (c)(1) The Presiding Commissioner may require prefiling of exhibits by a specified date in advance of the hearing.
 - (2) Prefiling of exhibits is never required in expedited cases under § 5-204.
 - (d) Spreadsheets or workbooks shall be provided electronically. See § 5-604.

§ 5-405 Recording of Hearing

- (a) The parties may record the hearing. Notice of the intent to record a hearing shall be provided to the opposing party. Only audio recordings shall be permitted. Broadcasting of proceedingshearings in any form is prohibited.
- (b) If a party desires to have a written transcript made of the hearing, the requesting party shall bear all costs of having it prepared. The Commission shall not required to prepare a transcript of a proceeding hearing.
- (c) A party may arrange for a hearing to be reported verbatim by a court reporter. Such party shall pay all associated costs and provide notice to the Commission and the other party prior to the hearing. Such party shall provide the other party a verbatim copy, if transcribed, at no cost to the recipient.
- (d) The Commission may record the hearing and may provide a copy of the recording to the parties upon request.

§ 5-406 Failure to Appear at Hearing or Prosecute Case

- (a) If a party fails to appear or participate in a hearing after proper service of notice, the Commission may proceed with the hearing and render a decision notwithstanding the party's failure to appear or participate.
- (b)(1) If a taxpayer stops communicating with the Commission or becomes unreachable, the presiding Commissioner may issue a warning to the taxpayer of potential dismissal for nonprosecution, which provides at least ten (10) days to respond.
- (2) If the taxpayer fails to respond to the warning, the presiding Commissioner may issue an Order to Show Cause why the case should not be dismissed for nonprosecution, which provides at least ten (10) days to respond.
- (3) If the taxpayer fails to respond to the Order to Show Cause, the Commission may dismiss the case.
- (4) Any warning or order to show cause issued under this subdivision shall be served on taxpayer by First Class mail and by electronic means if available.

§ 5-407 Bifurcation of Proceedings

(a) If the Commission determines that a resolution of a threshold issue, such as a statute of limitations, may dispose of a case, the Commission may bifurcate proceedings to hear and decide the threshold matter.

(b) If the determination of the threshold issue does not resolve the case, then an order shall be issued, and the case shall proceed. The determination of the threshold issue shall be explained in the subsequent decision on the merits under § 5-501.

§ 5-501 Issuance of Decision to the Parties

- (a) The Commission will issue a written decision. The decision will include findings of fact and conclusions of law. It will grant or deny relief and issue orders as the Commission deems appropriate to carry out the decision.
- (b) The <u>ClerkCommission</u> shall serve the decision on the parties. Service of the decision by the <u>Clerk</u> is the conclusion of substantive Commission proceedings to adjudicate the appeal petition, although the <u>publication procedures under § 5-502 may continue</u>.
- (c) The decision shall be issued within ninety (90) days of the close of the hearing or the, submission of the final post-hearing brief, or other close of the record, unless it is an expedited proceedingcase with a shorter deadline. The Commission may extend this deadline for good cause by submitting a letter to the parties.
- (d) A party may seek judicial relief by following the procedures stated in the Arkansas Tax Procedure Act, <u>Arkansas Code</u> § 26-18-101 et seq. Neither the Commission nor any Commissioner shall be made a party in a suit for judicial relief.
- (e) A party may, within seven (7) days of the decision, move for reconsideration to correct a clear error of fact or law. Such a motion is optional and not required to seek judicial relief.
 - (f) The Commission may correct an error in a decision on its own initiative.

§ 5-502 Redaction and Publication of Decision

- (a) The decision shall be published by the Commission on its website.
- **(b)** Before publication of a decision, Taxpayer-identifying information shall be redacted.
- (1) Taxpayer-identifying information includes Taxpayer names, identification or account numbers, addresses, and other information the disclosure of which would lead to identification of the Taxpayer. Dollar amounts will also be redacted unless necessary to understand the reasoning of the decision.
- (2) Taxpayer-identifying information does not include facts about the Taxpayer's activities or operations, particularly those facts that serve as the basis of the decision, unless publication of such facts would allow the public to identify the Taxpayer.

- (b) The Taxpayer shall have ten (10) days from service of the unredacted decision to file proposed redactions with the Commission using the Request for Redactions form. Such proposed redactions shall be based on the standards provided by this section.
- (c) After expiration of the ten (10) day period and after due consideration of any proposed redactions from the Taxpayer, the Commission shall finalize the redaction of Taxpayer-identifying information, and the decision shall be published on the Commission's website.

§ 5-503 En Banc Decisions

- (a) In an en banc case, a Commissioner may join in, concur with, or dissent from a decision, in all or in part.
- (b) A decision or portion of a decision in which two or more Commissioners join creates binding precedent as provided in Arkansas Code § 26-18-1116(d).
- (c) Where only two Commissioners are available, if the vote on the outcome of all or part of the case is split, such a split shall be resolved by sustaining that part of the Department's action or decision.

§ 5-601 Scope and Application of Electronic Filing

- (a) Use of the electronic filing system for filings after the petition is required for an authorized representative, except for an authorized representative with a disability that prevents the use of the electronic filing system. The petition should be filed electronically if possible.
- (b) Use of the electronic filing system by a Taxpayer without an authorized representative is encouraged but not required.
- (c) Conventional paper filings Filings shall be submitted by mail, hand delivery, or email in the event of electronic filing system errors or other technical problems pursuant tounder § 5-606.
- (d) The Commission shall electronically file or issue any notice, order, decision, or other document prepared by the Commission. The Commission shall provide a paper copy of such document to any party not using the electronic filing system.
- (e) An electronic document is the official record and has the same force and effect as a document filed conventionally.
- (f) Conventional documents shall be scanned by the <u>ClerkCommission</u> and made part of the electronic record. Once scanned, conventional <u>paper</u> documents may be destroyed.

§ 5-602 Time of Filing, Confirmation, and File-Mark

- (a) An electronic document is submitted when the transmission to the electronic filing system is completed. It is the user's responsibility to confirm that the transmission of the electronic document was completed.
- (b) After review and acceptance by the <u>ClerkCommission</u>, an electronic document shall be considered filed as of the date and time of submission.
 - (c) Notice of a rejection of a document will be provided to the filer electronically.
- (d) The electronic filing system shall record the date of filing, which shall have the same force and effect as a manually affixed stamp—of the Clerk.
- (e) Any document received by the electronic filing system before midnight shall be deemed filed on that date.

§ 5-603 Signatures

- (a) An electronic document shall be deemed to be signed by the registered user who files it.
- (b) An electronic document may be signed by scanned or digital signature, or, for signatures other than a Taxpayer's signature on a Power of Attorney form, a typewritten name may be used.

§ 5-604 Format of Documents

- (a) Electronic documents <u>filed by the parties</u> shall be legible and shall not contain hyperlinks to external sources.
- (b) Upon request of the Commission, spreadsheets or workbooks shall be provided in both a static format readable by a document viewer, such as portable document format, and in an unlocked format compatible with commonly used spreadsheet software.

§ 5-605 Registration Requirements

- (a) Registration of users is limited to individuals. The log-in sequence for a user shall be used only by the user to whom it is assigned and by agents authorized by the user.
- (b) Users shall furnish at least one email address for electronic service and other notices. It is the user's responsibility to ensure that the electronic filing system has the correct email address.

§ 5-606 Technical Failures

- (a) A technical failure of the electronic filing system shall excuse an untimely filing.
- (b) A user's technical problem that prevents submitting an electronic filing is not a technical failure of the electronic filing system. Users that encounter difficulties with their systems shall use alternative means to comply, possibly including conventional filing.
- (c) If a technical failure of the electronic filing system or other technical problem prevents a registered user from submitting an electronic filing, documents shall be submitted and served conventionally.

ARKANSAS TAX APPEALS COMMISSION PETITION

(Important: See Petition Instructions)

Taxpayer Name(s):	EIN or SSN (last four digits):
	Letter ID:
	Account ID/VIN:
Street Address:	(attach a copy of the DFA notice)
City:	State <u>:</u> Zip:
Phone Number-(optional)::	Email-(optional):
	provide. Identify what is being appealed. Attach a copy). of the DF
notice.	provide, identify what is being appeared. Attach a copy). Or the br
Tax type at issue (see instructions for list):	
Letter ID:	
Tax period(s):	
Amount disputed: \$	(do not include penalties or interest)
Related Matter Pending? If this appeal is relate	ed to an ongoing proceeding with the Commission, enter:
related Matter Fending. If this appear is relate	at to an ongoing proceeding with the commission, enter.
The taynaver's name(s)	
The taxpayer's name(s) The docket number (if known):	
• The docket number (if known): _	Reasons for Your Appeal. State the facts
The docket number (if known): Tax type (check one):	Reasons for Your Appeal. State the facts sufficiently clear on which you rely—see instructions.
The docket number (if known): Tax type (check one): Part III□ Sales & Use Tax (SLS)	Reasons for Your Appeal. State the facts sufficiently clear on which you rely—see instructions. Motor Vehicle Sales & Use Tax
Tax type (check one): Part III Sales & Use Tax (SLS) Individual Income Tax (IIT)	Reasons for Your Appeal. State the facts sufficiently clear on which you rely—see instructions. Motor Vehicle Sales & Use Tax Corporate Income Tax (CIT)
The docket number (if known): _ Tax type (check one): Part III□ Sales & Use Tax (SLS) □ Individual Income Tax (IIT) □ Wage Withholding Tax (WHW)	Reasons for Your Appeal. State the facts sufficiently clear on which you rely—see instructions. Motor Vehicle Sales & Use Tax Corporate Income Tax (CIT) Pass-Through Entity Tax (PET)
The docket number (if known): _ Tax type (check one): Part III Sales & Use Tax (SLS) Individual Income Tax (IIT)	Reasons for Your Appeal. State the facts sufficiently clear on which you rely—see instructions. Motor Vehicle Sales & Use Tax Corporate Income Tax (CIT) Pass-Through Entity Tax (PET) Composite Income Tax (ICT)

Part	of DFA action or decision being appealed (check one) Reasons for Your Appeal — continued. Description Proposed tax assessment	Statute (Arkansas Code Annotated)	Deadline 90 days	Inserted Cells
-	Refund claim denial	§§ 26-18-1113, 26-18-507(e)(2)(B)	90 days	
_	Joint refund offset (and attach Joint Refund Offset Petition Addendum)	§§ 26-36-315(c) or 26-18-507(e)(1)(B)(ii)	30 days	
	Business closure	§ 26-18-1002	5 business days	
	Emergency temporary license suspension	§ 26-18-601(b)	3 business days	
□	Cancellation/non-issuance of license, permit, or registration	§ 26-18-601(c)	20 days	
	Other (please specify): appeal is related to an existing appeal with the Comm	ission provide:		
		locket number:		

Part III	10000110 101	Tour Appour	. Specifically identify Attach additional n		ee Instructions for more i	
			Attaon additional p	ages il ficcucu. Ot	se mandenona for more	mormation.
Part IV	Authorized R	epresentativ	e (if any). Enter	the information reg	arding your representati	ve
	oelow information :	and attach Power	of Attorney.			
Vame:				Title:		_
irm Name, if	applicable: _					
Street Address						
City:				State	Zip:	
					Zip:	
					Zip:	
Phone Number	:		Email: _			
Phone Number	: Hearing Pref	erence. Indicat	Email: _			
Phone Number Part V ☐ In—per	: Hearing Pref	erence. Indicat	Email:			
Phone Number Part V ☐ In—per ☐ Virtual	Hearing Preferences Hearing Preferences Hearing Preferences Hearing Preferences Hearing Preferences	erence. Indicate mmission's office ferencing;	Email: te your preference by te in Little Rock erson at a location	r checking the app		low.
Part V In-per Virtual	Hearing Preferences Hearing Preferences Hearing Preferences Hearing Preferences Hearing Preferences	erence. Indicate mmission's office ferencing; rencing In-proof expedited ap	Email: te your preference by te in Little Rock erson at a location	r checking the app	ropriateonly one box be	low.
Part V In-per Virtual	Hearing Prefeson; at the Conly via videoconly via teleconfeson permitted funference (phonormal)	erence. Indicate mmission's office ferencing; rencing In-proof expedited ap	Email: te your preference by te in Little Rock erson at a location	r checking the app	ropriateonly one box be	low.
Phone Number Part V In-per Virtual Teleco Videoc	Hearing Preference (phonomers)	erence. Indicate mmission's office ferencing; rencing In-proof expedited appearable);)	Email: te your preference by te in Little Rock erson at a location	closer to Taxpay	ropriateonly one box be	low.
Part V In-per Virtual Teleco Videoc No hee	Hearing Preference (phono onference nation of in-per	erence. Indicate mmission's office ferencing; rencing In-proof expedited appropriate to a cealth;)	Email: te your preference by ee in Little Rock erson at a location peals. ference or, videoc lely on written sub	closer to Taxpay	ropriateonly one box be	low. al Arkansas
Part V In-per Virtual Virtual Teleco Combi	Hearing Preference (phono onference nation of in-per	erence. Indicate mmission's office ferencing; rencing In-proof expedited appropriate to a cealth;)	Email: te your preference be in Little Rock erson at a location peals. ference or, videoc lely on written sub-	closer to Taxpay	roprinteonly one box be ver, if outside of centre d) ng waived(no hearing	low. al Arkansas
Part V In-per Virtual Virtual Teleco Videod No hee aurtner, memb uthorized to s also certify the	Hearing Preference (phono onference nation of in-per ring decision *Not permitted for the permitted signature. That I am the per crip of the permitted for the permitted for the permitted signature.	erence. Indicate mmission's office ferencing; reneing In-proor expedited appearance and telecon based solely Sofor business closerson identified esentative of the on behalf of the	te your preference be en Little Rock erson at a location peals. deference or, videoce lely on written subsure, permit cancer of the person or entity e taxpayer under the supply of the person or entity entarpayer of the person or entity entarpayer under the supply of the person or entity entarpayer under the supply of the person or entity entarpayer under the supply of the person or entity entarpayer under the supply of the supply	closer to Taxpay onference (hybri missions heari ellation or denial n Page 1 of this p identified on Page he provided Pow	roprinteonly one box be ver, if outside of centre d) ng waived(no hearing	al Arkansas ()** dited appea
Part V In-per Virtual Virtual Virtual Teleco Combi No here Part VI Chereby certify artner, memb authorized to salso certify the Department	Hearing Preference (phone onference (phone onference mation of in-per ring decision *Not permitted Signature. That I am the per, or other reprign this petition at the foregoing t's decision.	erence. Indicate mmission's office ferencing; reneing In-proor expedited appearance and telecon based solely Sofor business closerson identified esentative of the on behalf of the	te your preference be en Little Rock erson at a location peals. deference or, videocolely on written substance, permit cancel as the taxpayer of e person or entity to true and correct, as true as true as true and correct, as true	closer to Taxpay onference (hybri missions heari ellation or denial n Page 1 of this p identified on Page he provided Pow	d) ng waived(no hearing, or certain other experient) nettion, or I am a corporate Las the taxpayer, of the corporation of the c	al Arkansas (1)** Edited appea porate office r I am tted herewit r or notice o

Print Name: _			Title:	
		FOR CLERK	'S USE ONLY	
The foregoin	Petition ha	as been served upon the Dep	artment of Finance and Administration	this
	2			

Instructions: Petition

(Rev. Sept 202211/23)

NOTE:=Electronic filing of all documents after the initial petition is required of all authorized representatives (unless a disability prevents it) and is encouraged for all taxpayers proceeding pro se. (i.e., without an authorized representative). Login credentials and instructions will be emailed to you upon receipt of this form by the Clerk of the Commission.

General Instructions for Filing a Petition

The Tax Appeals Commission recommends that this petition be filed online at https://tac.arkansas.gov. Taxpayers proceeding-pro-se-may/https://ig.arkansas.gov/tax-appeals-commission/petition/. Alternatively, file this form: (1) by <a href="mailto-emai

Clerk of the Commission

Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission 900 West Capitol, Suite 310 Little Rock, AR 72201

If not filing online, fill out this form and mail or hand deliver it to the Commission. Type or print legibly in ink.

Provide a copy of the Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) decision that you are appealing.

More information concerning the appeal process and the Commission's Rules of Procedure are available online at https://tac.arkansas.gov.

There is no fee for filing this petition.

For more information concerning the appeal process and the Commission's Rules of Procedure, see the Commission's website, https://tac.arkansas.gov.

Questions regarding this form or the appeal process should be directed to the Clerk of the Commission at the above address or by email to tac@arkansas.gov, phone at 501-682-2741. The Clerk is prohibited from offering, or mail at the above address. Commission staff can provide information about tax appeal procedures and requirements but cannot provide tax or legal advice.

Specific Instructions

Part I - Taxpayer Information

Enter the information of the taxpayer. If the taxpayer is an entity (corporation, partnership, LLC, trust, etc.), enter the entity's information in the spaces provided. Taxpayer's. If phone number andor email address are not required for the Petition to be valid. If is provided, you consent to be contacted by the Commission using the phone number and email address provided by that method.

The Letter ID and Account ID can be found on the notice issued to you by the DFA. Be sure to attach a copy of the DFA notice.

Part II - Action or Decision of the Department

In most cases, Attach <u>a</u> petition must be filed within ninety (90) days from <u>copy of the</u> date the DFA issues a proposed assessment <u>Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) notice or refund claim denial or takes <u>other DFA action or proposed action that the taxpayer is appealing.</u></u>

Expedited Proceedings

Certain Arkansas statutes provide for expedited proceedings, which cause the filing deadlines for some petitions to be sooner than ninety (90) days. If the decision that you are appealing calls for, including any associated documents such as an expedited proceeding, doexplanation of adjustment or a summary of findings. The Tax Appeals Commission does not file this form. Instead, file the Petition for Expedited Proceeding form, which can be obtained from the Commission's office or online at https://tae.arkansas.gov, have access to DFA records and cannot look up your account.

Letter ID, Account ID and Tax Period(s)

Provide this information about the DFA action or decision, which can be found on the notice issued to you by DFA.

Tax Type at Issue

In Mark the space provided, enter the type of relevant tax that type. If the tax type you are appealing is at issuenot listed, mark "Other" and write in the tax type.

Type of DFA Decision Being Appealed

See the relevant appeal statute for applicable law and requirements. In most cases, a petition must be filed within ninety (90) days from the table belowdate DFA issues a proposed assessment, refund claim denial, or other action or decision being appealed. Appeals of certain actions or decisions are expedited with shorter appeal deadlines, such as business closures, joint refund offsets, and permit denials or cancellations. The notice you received from DFA indicates the DFA action or decision to appeal. Check the box next to the relevant appeal type and attach a copy of the DFA notice. If the DFA action or decision you wish to appeal is not listed, mark "Other," write a description of the action you wish to appeal, and attach a copy of the DFA notice.

• Bingo permit	 Motor fuel tax
Business closure	Real property transfer to
• Economic development incentive	 Sales and use tax
• Excise tax (beer, liquor, wine)	• Severance tax
• Income tax	• Soft drink tax
Income tax withholding	Waste tire fee

For Joint Refund Offsets, also attach a completed Joint Refund Offset Petition Addendum, including supporting documentation.

Related Matter Pending

If there are separate Separate matters that involve similar issues of law or fact and identical or related parties, the matters may be are typically consolidated if it appears that consolidation would promote the just, speedy, and inexpensive resolution of the proceedings and would not unduly prejudice the rights of a party, including the taxpayer's right to confidentiality into a single proceeding. If your appeal is related relates to an ongoing proceeding existing appeal with the Commission, enter the taxpayer's taxpayer name(s) and the docket number (if known) in the spaces provided.

Part III - Reasons for Your Appeal

State the Identify what specific items you are disputing, stating relevant facts sufficiently clear to identify and providing your reasons for opposing the proposed assessment, denial of a claim for refund, or other action of the Department ("DFA"), and the specific items at issue. Explain why you disagree with the DFA's determination or action and explain why the issue(s) should be decided in your favor action or decision of DFA. Attach additional pages if necessary. Providenceded. If items in dispute are numerous, provide supporting schedules of items in dispute. You may also attach relevant documentary exhibits. For your reasons, provide, if known, the law, rules, or cases in support of your arguments. Be careful Do not to simply state "assessment is too high" or "assessment is wrong"; instead, provide specific reasons specifically state what you are disputing and explain why you believe relief should be granted. Note that the Commission must follow Arkansas law and cannot waive application of the law for your belief.

<u>financial or personal hardship.</u> The Commission may reject your appeal if the reasons for disagreement and why relief sufficient information is requested are not provided.

Part IV - Authorized Representative Information

A Power of Attorney form identifying the authorized representative must be submitted if the Petition is signed by a representative and not the taxpayer. Representation by an attorney, CPA, or other person is allowed but not required.

If represented, enter the representative's information on the form. If multiple representatives, list the lead representative. For a representative to sign the petition or otherwise represent a taxpayer, a completed Power of Attorney form must be provided, and the Commission's form must be used. The Power of Attorney form can be obtained from the Commission's office or online at https://tac.arkansas.gov. Enter the information regarding your lead representative in the spaces provided. Representation by an attorney, CPA or other person is allowed but not required. You may appoint more than one authorized representative but only one person shall serve you as your lead representative. If a representative is designated, attach the completed Power of Attorney form to the petition.

Part V – Hearing Preference

Indicate whether you elect for theyour hearing to be in-person in Little Rock, in-person at a location closer to Taxpayer, by teleconference, by videoconference, or by a combination thereof. You can also waive a hearing on the merits by writingln-person hearings at locations outside of Little Rock are subject to special scheduling considerations and informing the Commission you deare not wish a hearing on the merits. In that event, your case will be decided solelyallowed for expedited proceedings. A decision on written submissions-documents only, with no hearing, can be selected for appeal of a proposed tax assessment, a refund claim denial, another DFA action with a non-expedited appeal, or a joint refund offset. A hearing is required for appeal of business closure, a permit denial or cancellation, or other DFA action with an expedited appeal (excepting joint refund offsets as noted above).

You may If you request to have an in-person hearing at a location other than Little Rock by filing a motion with the Commission to have the hearing at a location more convenient to you. The, the presiding commissioner may grant such request or may require that you choose between an in-person hearing in Little Rock, a teleconference, or a videoconference. If you desire a hybrid proceeding (in person with one or more individuals participating virtually), check the box for an in-person hearing and notify the Clerk.

Part VI - Signature

Sign your name and enter the other information requested in the spaces provided. If signing for an entity, you must be authorized under Arkansas law to act on behalf of the entity (owner, officer, trustee, etc.) and must enter your title in the space provided. If the appeal relates to a joint tax liability of married taxpayers, either spouse may sign.

NOTE: After the initial petition is filed, electronic filing of all documents is required of all authorized representatives (unless a disability prevents it) and is encouraged for all self-represented taxpayers. Login credentials and instructions will be emailed to you after receipt and processing of this form by the Commission.

ARKANSAS TAX APPEALS COMMISSION PETITION FOR EXPEDITED PROCEEDING

(See Instructions)

-	payer Name(s):	EIN or SSN (last four digits):
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Letter ID:
~ .		Account ID:
Stree	et Address:	(attach a copy of the DFA notice)
Sity		State Zip:
'hor	ne Number (optional): Em	nail (optional):
Pai	Decision Being Appealed. Check the	appropriate box below and provide a copy of the decision.
	Description	-Statute (Arkansas Code Annotated)
3	Joint refund claims offset	§§ 26-18-507(e)(1)(B)(ii) or 26-36-315(e)
3	Emergency temporary license suspension	<u>§ 26-18-601(b)</u>
3	Cancellation/non-issuance of license, permit, or reg.	<u>§ 26-18-601(c)</u>
3	License revocation (liquified gas special fuels)	§ 26-56-311
=	License revocation (coin-op amusement)	§§ 26-57-413, or 26-57-419-
	Vending machine seizure	§ 26-57-1212-
3	Jeopardy assessment	§ 26-18-402-
	Business closure	<u>§ 26-18-1002-</u>
	License revocation (motor fuels)	§ 26-55-231-
3	Motor fuel equipment confiscation	<u>§ 26-55-247-</u>
) ofo	to the applicable statute for details regarding petition deadlerk at 501-682-2741 to schedule an expedited hearing. Trinistration.	dlines. Immediately upon submitting this petition for filing, he Clerk will serve this Petition on the Department of Finan
he C Adm		
he C Adm	period(s):	
he C Adm Fax		ngoing proceeding with the Commission, enter:
he C Adm Fax	period(s): ted Matter Pending? If this appeal is related to an or The taxpayer's name(s)	ngoing proceeding with the Commission, enter:
he C Adm Fax	ted Matter Pending? If this appeal is related to an or	ngoing proceeding with the Commission, enter:

Part IV Authorized Representative (if any)	Enter the information regarding your representative below.
Name:	Title:
Firm Name, if applicable:	
Street Address:	
City:	State:Zip:
N. V. I	
Phone Number: Er	nail:
Part V Hearing Preference. Indicate your preference.	erence by checking the appropriate box below.
☐ In person;	
☐ Virtually via videoconferencing; or,	
☐ Virtually via teleconferencing (phone call).	
withthany via teleconferencing (phone can).	
Part VI Signature	
I hereby certify that I am the person identified as the tax	payer on Page 1 of this petition, or I am a corporate officer,
partner, member, or other representative of the person or authorized to sign this petition on behalf of the taxpayer	entity identified on Page 1 as the taxpayer, or I am
certify the foregoing information is true and correct, and	I have included a conv of the order or notice of the
Department's decision.	Thave included a copy of the order of notice of the
Signature:	Date:
Dignature.	Date.
P. 1. 1. 1.	
Print Name:	<u>Title:</u>

FOR CLERK'S USE ONLY

The foregoing Petition has been serv	ved upon the Department of Finance and Administration this
	llowing means:
,,,,,,,,	
	By: Clerk of the Commission
NO	TICE OF EXPEDITED HEARING
110	TICE OF EXPEDITED HEARING
NOTICE: 1 1 : 4 /4 C	
	regoing matter is scheduled for hearing before the Arkansas Tax
Appeals Commission on	, 2 beginning at:m. and continuing thereafter
until completed.	
	By: Clerk of the Commission
	By. Clerk of the Colliniasion

Instructions: Petition for Expedited Proceeding

(Rev. Sept 2022)

NOTE: Electronic filing of all documents after the initial petition is required of all authorized representatives (unless a disability prevents it) and is encouraged for all taxpayers proceeding *pro se* (i.e., without an authorized representative). Login credentials and instructions will be emailed to you upon receipt of this form by the Clerk of the Commission.

General Instructions for Filing Petition

The Tax Appeals Commission recommends this petition be filed online at https://tac.arkansas.gov. Taxpayers proceeding pro se may file this form: (1) in person, Monday through Friday between 8:00 am and 4:30 pm (except on state government holidays); or (2) by mail to:

Clerk of the Commission
Tax Appeals Commission
900 West Capitol, Suite 310
Little Rock, AR 72201

If not filing online, fill out this form and mail or hand deliver it to the Commission. Type or print legibly in ink.

Provide a copy of the Department of Finance and Administration (DFA) decision that you are appealing.

More information concerning the appeal process and the Commission's Rules of Procedure are available online at https://tac.arkansas.gov.

There is no fee for filing this petition.

Questions regarding this form should be directed to the Clerk of the Commission at the above address or by phone at 501-682-2741. The Clerk is prohibited from offering legal advice.

Specific Instructions

Part I Taxpayer Information

If the taxpayer is an entity (corporation, partnership, LLC, trust, etc.), enter the entity's information in the spaces provided. Taxpayer's phone number and email address are not required for the Petition to be valid. If provided, you consent to be contacted by the Commission using the phone number and email address provided.

The Letter ID and Account ID can be found on the notice issued to you by the DFA. Be sure to attach a copy of the DFA notice.

Part II Action or Decision of the Department

Cheek the box indicating the Arkansas statute under which the DFA has acted. DO NOT use this form unless you seek administrative relief under one of the statutes listed. Use a separate form for non-expedited proceedings. All forms are available online at https://tac.arkansas.gov.

Expedited Proceedings

The Arkansas statutes listed provide for expedited proceedings, which cause the filing deadlines for those petitions to be sooner than ninety (90) days. If the decision you are appealing calls for an Expedited Proceeding, call the Clerk at 501-682-2741 upon filing your petition to inform the Commission and request a date, time, and location for the hearing to be confirmed by a written Notice of Hearing.

Related Matter Pending

If there are separate matters that involve similar issues of law or fact and identical or related parties, the matters may be consolidated if it appears that consolidation would promote the just, speedy, and inexpensive resolution of the proceedings and would not unduly prejudice the rights of a party, including the taxpayer's right to confidentiality. If your appeal is related to an ongoing proceeding with the Commission, enter the taxpayer's name(s) and the docket number (if known) in the spaces provided.

Part III - Reasons for Your Appeal

State the facts sufficiently clear to identify your reasons for opposing the proposed assessment, denial of a claim for refund, or other action of the DFA, and the specific items at issue. Explain why you disagree with the DFA's determination or action and explain why the issue(s) should be decided in your favor. Attach additional pages if necessary. Provide, if known, the law, rules, or cases in support of your arguments. Be careful not to simply state "assessment is too high" or "assessment is wrong"; instead, provide specific reasons for your belief.

The Commission may reject your petition if the reasons for disagreement and why relief is requested are not provided.

Part IV Authorized Representative Information

A Power of Attorney form identifying the authorized representative must be submitted if the Petition is signed by a representative and not the taxpayer. The Power of Attorney form can be obtained from the Commission's office or online at https://tac.arkansas.gov. Enter the information regarding your lead representative in the spaces provided. Representation by an attorney, CPA or other person is allowed but not required. You may appoint more than one authorized representative but only one person shall serve you as your lead representative.

Part V Hearing Preference

Indicate whether you elect for the hearing to be in person, by teleconference, by videoconference, or by a combination thereof.

You may request to have an in-person hearing at a location other than Little Rock by filing a motion with the Commission to have the hearing at a location more convenient to you. The presiding commissioner may grant such request or may require that you choose between an in-person hearing in Little Rock, a teleconference, or a videoconference. If you desire a hybrid proceeding (in person with one or more individuals participating virtually), check the box for an in-person hearing and notify the Clerk.

Part VI Signature

Sign your name and enter the other information requested in the spaces provided. If signing for an entity, you must be authorized under Arkansas law to act on behalf of the entity (owner, officer, trustee, etc.) and must enter your title in the space provided. If the appeal relates to a joint tax liability of married taxpayers, either spouse may sign.

Arkansas Tax Appeals Commissi on

Power of Attorney and Declaration of Representative

(Ark. Code § 26-18-1120)

dc Full-Time Employee—a full-time employee of the Taxpayer; or

(Rev. Nov. 202211/23) Power of Attorney TAC Docket No(s). (if known): 1. Taxpayer information. Taxpayer must sign and date this form on line 3 below. Taxpayer name and address Last 4 digits of taxpayer's tax identification number(s)DFA Letter ID(s): Telephone number Tax period(s): Taxpayer hereby appoints the following individual(s) to represent the Taxpayer before the Tax Appeals Commission. 2. Representative(s). Representative(s) must sign and date this form in Part II below. Name and U.S. Postal mailing address of Representative (lead representative) Telephone No. Name and U.S. Postal mailing address of Representative (optional additional representative) Telephone No. 3. Taxpayer declaration and signature. If a tax matter concerns a joint tax liability, each spouse must file a separate attorney even if they are appointing appoint the same representative above individual(s). to represent the Taxpayer before the Tax Appeals Commission. If signed by a corporate officer, partner, guardian, partnership representative, executor, receiver, administrator, trustee, or individual other than the Taxpayer, I certify I have the legal authority to execute this form on behalf of the Taxpayer. Signature Date Title (if applicable) Print name of signer Print name of Taxpayer from line 1 if other than an individual Part II Declaration of Representative(s) I have reviewed and will follow the Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission Rules of Procedure; I am not currently suspended or disbarred from practice, or ineligible for practice, as an attorney, certified public accountant, or Certified Public Accountant other professional by any jurisdiction; I am authorized to represent the Taxpayer identified in Part I for the matter(s) specified herein; and, I am one of the following: a Attorney—a member in good standing and authorized to practice law in Arkansas by the Supreme Court of Arkansas or other jurisdiction; **b** Certified Public Accountant—a holder of an active license to practice as a certified public accountant—in the state of Arkansas or other jurisdiction; c Officer—an authorized officer of the Taxpayer organization;

Deleted Cells

ed Other Authorized Representative.

Designation Insert above letter (a-	Licensure state(s) and license number(s), — if applicable:	Signature I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.	Date Executed-

Instructions: Power of Attorney and Declaration of Representative

General Instructions

Purpose of Form

Use this Power of Attorney (POA) form to authorize an individual to represent you before the Tax Appeals Commission (TAC). You may authorize any individual 18 years of age or older to represent you. Authorizing someone to represent you does not relieve you of your tax obligations.

Questions regarding this form should be directed to the Clerk of the Commission at the address below (under *How to File*) or by phone at 501-682-2741.

How To File

First time filers must mail or hand deliver the form to:

For new cases about to be filed, the POA can be uploaded by attaching it to the online petition form, which can be found at https://ig.arkansas.gov/tax-appeals-commission/petition/. For cases already assigned a docket number, the POA can be emailed to the case-specific email address. Other alternatives are to email the POA to tac@arkansas.gov, or mail or hand-deliver the POA to:

Tax Appeals Commission 900 West Capitol, Suite 310 Little Rock, AR -72201

Registered users of the TAC electronic filing system must submit forms securely through https://tac.arkansas.gov.

Electronic Filing

Electronic filing of documents is required of all authorized representatives unless prevented by disability.

Login credentials and instructions will be emailed to representatives who are not existing users of the TAGelectronic filing system upon receipt and acceptance of this form by the Clerk of the Commission.

Signatures

A Power of Attorney must be manually signed by the taxpayer. The filed Power of Attorney can be a copy or scan of the signature.

Authority Granted

Except as specified below, this power of attorney authorizes the listed representative(s) to receive confidential tax information and appear on your behalf before the Tax Appeals Commission. _This

authorization does not include the power to (1) substitute or add another representative or (2) disclose tax returns or return information to a third party.

Revocation or withdrawal of a power of attorney

On written motion served on the party represented and all other parties of record, the Presiding-Commissioner may grant an authorized representative leave to withdraw for good cause shown.

Address Changes

If the email address or USPS address for either you or your representative changes, do not file a new Power of Attorney. POA. Instead, file a written notification with the Clerk Commission that includes the new information.

Specific Instructions

Part I. Power of Attorney

If this is a Power of Attorney for one or more existing proceedings for which docket numbers have been issued, enter the applicable docket number(s). For a Power of Attorney filed with a petition, leave blank.

Line 1. Taxpayer Information

Enter the information requested about you. Do not enter information about any other person, including your spouse. A separate Power of Attorney should be submitted for each taxpayer.

Individuals. Enter your name, last four digits of your SSN, ITIN, and/or employer identification number (EIN), if applicable, and your street address or post office box. If you file a tax return that includes a sole-proprietorship business (Schedule C (Form 1040)) and you are authorizing, and the listed representative(s) to represent you for your individual and business tax matters, including employment tax liabilities, enterLetter ID from the last four digits of both your SSN (or ITIN) and your business EIN as your taxpayer identification-numbers-notice you received from the Department of Finance and Administration. If you, your spouse, or former spouse are submitting powers of atterneyPOAs in connection with a joint return that you filed, you must each submit separate Power of AtterneyPOA forms even if you are authorizing the same representative(s) to represent you.

Corporations, associations, or partnerships. Enter the name, last four digits of the EIN, and business address, and Letter ID from the notice you received from the Department of Finance and Administration. For consolidated returns, only the parent corporation information is required on line 1.

Exempt organizations. Enter the name, <u>and</u> address, <u>and last four digits</u> of the <u>EIN of the exemptorganization</u>, <u>and the Letter ID from the notice you received from the Department of Finance and Administration</u>

Trusts. Enter the name, title, and address of the trustee, and the name and last four digits of Letter ID from the EIN of notice you received from the trustDepartment of Finance and Administration.

Deceased individuals or Estates estates. Enter the name and last four digits of the SSN (or ITIN) of of the decedent and; the name, title, and address of the decedent's executor or personal representative; and the Letter ID from the notice you received from the Department of Finance and Administration.

Line 2. Representative(s)

Enter the information requested about your representative(s). You may name any individual 18 years of age or older as your representative. If you want to name more than two representatives, submit additional Power of AttorneyPOA forms. Your authorization of an eligible representative will allow that individual to receive your confidential tax information.

Line 3. Taxpayer Declaration and Signature

The POA must be manually signed by the taxpayer. The filed POA can include a copy or scan of the manual signature.

Individuals. You must sign and date the power of attorney. POA. If you filed a joint return, your spouse must execute his or her own power of attorney. POA on a separate form to designate a representative. For Taxpayer individuals who are under 18 years of age and cannot sign, the individual's parent or guardian may sign on their behalf. Other individuals may sign for the Taxpayer if a Power of Attorney. For has been signed by the parent or guardian authorizing the other individual(s) to sign on behalf of the Taxpayer.

Corporations or associations. An officer with the legal authority to bind the corporation or association must sign and enter his or her exact-title.

Partnerships. One partner authorized to act in the name of the partnership is required to sign and enter his or her title. A partner is authorized to act in the name of the partnership if, under state law, the partner has authority to bind the partnership.

Estates. If there is more than one executor, only one co-executor having the authority to bind the estate is required to sign.

All others. If the Taxpayer is a dissolved corporation, deceased individual, insolvent, or a person for whom or by whom a fiduciary (a trustee, guarantor, receiver, executor, or administrator) has been appointed, an individual with the authority to bind the entity is required to sign.

Part II. Declaration of Representative

The representative(s) you name must sign and date this declaration and enter the designation (items (a)–(ed)) in the order listed. An authorized representative must certify review of the Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission Rules of Procedure, which are found at:

https://ig.arkansas.gov/tax-appeals-commission/legal-information-rules-and-self-help/.

In addition, the representative(s) must include the requested information in the column headed "Licensure state(s) and license number(s), if applicable"—."

ARKANSAS TAX APPEALS COMMISSION JOINT REFUND OFFSET PETITION ADDENDUM

(See Instructions)

Part I	Taxpayer and Case Ir	nformation.			
Nondebt	tor Spouse:		DFA Letter I	D:	
Debtor S	Spouse:		Docket No. (if assigned):		
Claimant	Claimant Agency:				
Part II	Calculation of Refund	Attributable to Each S	pouse.		
Use this w	vorksheet to calculate the amoun	t of the total refund that is a	ttributable to eacl	n spouse.	
			Nondebtor Spouse	Debtor Spouse	<u>Total</u>
	Tax Amount	ī			
Line 1	Tax	Form AR1000F, line 29	_		_
Line 2	Other taxes	Form AR1000F, lines 31 & 32	_	_	
Line 3	<u>Total taxes</u>	Add lines 1 and 2			
	Credits and Paym	<u>ents</u>			
Line 4	Personal Tax Credit	Form AR1000F, line 34	_		-
Line 5	Child Care Credit	Form AR1000F, line 35	_	_	
Line 6	Other Credits	Form AR1000F, line 36	_	_	
Line 7	<u>Payments</u>	Form AR1000F, line 46			
Line 8	Total Credits and Payments	Add lines 4 through 7			
Line 9	Proportionate Shares of Tax Refund	Subtract Line 3 from Line 8			
Part III	Checklist of Required	Items. Provide all necessary of	documentation: see In	astructions for detai	/ _c
	ovide a completed Claimant Age aimant Agency certifying that yo				m the
	rovide all tax documents needed bouse, such as your complete Arl			entitled to as the	e Nondebtor
<u>Pr</u>	covide a copy of the Notice of Ro	efund Offset issued by the D	epartment of Fin	ance and Admin	istration. ⁱⁱⁱ
<u>Pr</u>	ovide the signature of the Nond	ebtor Spouse on the petition	iv		

Instructions: Petition Addendum – Joint Refund Offset

(Rev. Nov 2023)

General Instructions

This petition addendum and the related documents must be included with any petition seeking spousal relief from a proposed joint refund offset. Only spousal relief claims can be heard. The Tax Appeals Commission cannot hear an appeal of the validity of the debt listed as owed by Debtor Spouse or whether the debt has been paid.

"Nondebtor Spouse" refers to the spouse not identified as owing a debt to the Claimant Agency, who is the taxpayer petitioning for spousal relief from a Joint Refund Offset. "Debtor Spouse" refers to the individual identified as owing the debt, with whom the Nondebtor Spouse filed a joint return.

"Claimant Agency" is the governmental agency or entity that has submitted a debt to the Department of Finance and Administration for collection by tax refund offset. "DFA" means the Department of Finance and Administration.

Information concerning the appeal process and the Commission's Rules of Procedure is available online at https://tac.arkansas.gov. Questions regarding this form should be directed to the Commission at tac@arkansas.gov or 501-682-2741. Questions about the debt itself should be directed to the Claimant Agency.

Specific Instructions

Part I – Taxpayer and Case Information

Enter the information for the Nondebtor Spouse seeking relief and for the Debtor Spouse identified in the DFA Notice of Refund Offset, including the Claimant Agency and the DFA Letter ID for the Notice. (Listing on this form as the Debtor Spouse does not constitute any admission or evidence of the debt.) If you have already filed a petition, provide the docket number for your case.

Part II - Calculation of Refund Attributable to Each Spouse

The total refund claimed on a joint return can be attributed to one or the other spouse, or each spouse could share in the refund depending on the tax incurred and withholding or payments made. Only the portion of the refund that is attributable to the Nondebtor Spouse is eligible for relief. Use the worksheet to calculate the amount of the total refund that is attributable to each spouse. References to the related lines on your return are provided in the worksheet. The amounts you enter in the "Total" column must agree with the amounts shown on your return. Taxes, credits, and payments should be assigned to the relevant individuals. Joint items, such as a credit for a dependent child both spouses have custody of, should be split evenly. Nonrefundable credits exceeding an individual's proportionate share of tax should be assigned to the other spouse.

Part III - Checklist of Required Items

Include with the petition and this addendum each listed item. If any are missing, your petition could be rejected.

- i A completed Claimant Agency Nondebtor Certification form or equivalent document from the Claimant Agency certifying that the Nondebtor Spouse is not a debtor of the Claimant Agency.
- Documents to support the amount of refund that is attributable to the Nondebtor Spouse. This documentation must support the share of the Nondebtor Spouse's payment of tax and the resulting amount of the joint refund that is not subject to setoff. Include a complete copy of the individual income tax return (typically form AR1000F), all forms W-2 and 1099, and any other documentation that supports the credits allowable for each spouse, and the Arkansas income taxes owed and paid by each spouse.
- iii A copy of the Notice of Refund Offset issued by DFA, which is needed to confirm which spouse is listed as owing the debt, what agency is the Claimant Agency, and the amount of the proposed offset.
- iv The Nondebtor Spouse must sign the petition. The Debtor Spouse's signature is not needed or sufficient.



ARKANSAS TAX APPEALS COMMISSION

CLAIMANT AGENCY NONDEBTOR CERTIFICATION FOR INCOME TAX JOINT REFUND OFFSET APPEAL

Instructions: Arkansas state or local government agencies may collect debts by intercepting state income tax refunds. For spouses filing a joint Arkansas income tax return, the spouse who does not owe the debt (the "Nondebtor Spouse") can request that his or her share of a tax overpayment be refunded instead of being applied to the debt of the spouse who does owe the debt. The Nondebtor Spouse must prove that he or she does not owe money to the agency by obtaining documentation certified by the agency verifying that the Nondebtor Spouse is not a debtor of the claimant agency. See Ark. Code Ann. § 26-36-315(c)(1)(B)(i). This form is provided for that purpose, or the agency's own format may be used. Once completed and signed by an authorized individual for the agency, the completed form should be returned to the Nondebtor Spouse, who is responsible for filing it with the Tax Appeals Commission.

Claimant Agency:	
Nondebtor Spouse full name:	
Nondebtor Spouse account, SSN, or other identifier:	
Nondebtor Spouse city and state:	
The records of the claimant agency reflect that (mark whichever best applies):	
☐ The Nondebtor Spouse named above is not a debtor of the agency.	
☐ The agency does not have any record of debts owed by the Nondebtor Spouse named above.	<u>1</u>
☐ The Nondebtor Spouse named above has a balance due of \$0.00.	
Other. Explain:	
I certify that this information is true and correct.	
<u>Signature</u> Date	
Printed Name Title	

ARKANSAS TAX APPEALS COMMISSION

REOUEST FOR REDACTIONS

(Ark. Code 26-18-1120)

cket N	o.:		Date of Decision:	
xpayer	Name(s): _			
Part II Redactions Requested. Submit additional pages using the same format, if necessary.				
Page No.	Para. No.	Term or Phrase to be Redacted	Reason for Redaction	
Signatu	ire(s)			
	or Authorized	Representative Additional Taxpayer or	Authorized Representative Date	
nstruc		Representative Additional Taxpayer or	Authorized Representative Date	

The Commission will redact its decision prior to publication pursuant to its Rules of Procedure. This form may be used to request redactions from the Commission's decision. If you want to request specific redactions, this form must be filed with the Commission within ten (10) days of the date the Commission served the parties with the decision.

This form should be filed using the electronic filing system established by the Commission. Parties exempt from the electronic filing system may file a hard copy of this form with the Clerk of Commission. List each redaction separately. For each term or phrase that you want redacted, provide the page and paragraph number within the decision of that term or phrase, the exact term or phrase, and your reason. If more space is needed, submit additional pages using the same format.

Doolrat	TA T		
LIGOVAT	NO :		
DOCKET	T10		

Part II (cont) Additional Page for Requested Redactions (if needed).

Page	Para.	Term or Phrase to be Redacted	Reason for Redaction
No.	No.	Term of Thrase to be reducted	reason to reduction

FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT

PLEASE ANSWER ALL QUESTIONS COMPLETELY.

DEPA	ARTMENT Inspector General
BOAI	RD/COMMISSION Tax Appeals Commission
PERS	ON COMPLETING THIS STATEMENT Matt Boch, Chief Commissioner
TELE	PHONE NO. (501) 682-8349 EMAIL Matt.Boch@arkansas.gov
email i	it with the questionnaire, summary, markup and clean copy of the rule, and other documents. attach additional pages, if necessary.
TITL	E OF THIS RULE Rules of Procedure of the Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission
1.	Does this proposed, amended, or repealed rule have a financial impact? Yes No
2.	Is the rule based on the best reasonably obtainable scientific, technical, economic, or other evidence and information available concerning the need for, consequences of, and alternatives to the rule? Yes No No
3.	In consideration of the alternatives to this rule, was this rule determined by the agency to be the least costly rule considered? Yes No
	If no, please explain:
	(a) how the additional benefits of the more costly rule justify its additional cost;
	(b) the reason for adoption of the more costly rule;
	(c) whether the reason for adoption of the more costly rule is based on the interests of public health, safety, or welfare, and if so, how; and
	(d) whether the reason for adoption of the more costly rule is within the scope of the agency's statutory authority, and if so, how.
4.	If the purpose of this rule is to implement a <i>federal</i> rule or regulation, please state the following:

(a) What is the cost to implement the federal rule or regulation?

	<u>Current Fiscal Year</u>	Next Fiscal Year
	General Revenue	General Revenue
	Federal Funds	Federal Funds
	Cash Funds	Cash Funds
	Special Revenue	Special Revenue
	Other (Identify)	Other (Identify)
	Total	Total
	(b) What is the additional cost of the stat	te rule?
	Current Fiscal Year	Next Fiscal Year
	General Revenue	General Revenue
	Federal Funds	Federal Funds
	Cash Funds	Cash Funds
	Special Revenue	Special Revenue
	Other (Identify)	Other (Identify)
	Total	Total
5.	business subject to the proposed, amenderule, and explain how they are affected.	year to any private individual, private entity, or private ed, or repealed rule? Please identify those subject to the
	<u>Current Fiscal Year</u>	Next Fiscal Year \$ 0.00
	\$ 0.00 The rules are procedural. No financial impact is	
6.	implement this rule? Is this the cost of this affected.	year to a state, county, or municipal government to he program or grant? Please explain how the government
	Current Fiscal Year	Next Fiscal Year
	\$ 0.00	\$ 0.00

The rules are procedural. No financial impact is expected.

7.	With respect to the agency's answers to Questions #5 and #6 above, is there a new or increased
	cost or obligation of at least one hundred thousand dollars (\$100,000) per year to a private
	individual, private entity, private business, state government, county government, municipal
	government, or to two (2) or more of those entities combined?



If yes, the agency is required by Ark. Code Ann. § 25-15-204(e)(4) to file written findings at the time of filing the financial impact statement. The written findings shall be filed simultaneously with the financial impact statement and shall include, without limitation, the following:

- (1) a statement of the rule's basis and purpose;
- (2) the problem the agency seeks to address with the proposed rule, including a statement of whether a rule is required by statute;
- (3) a description of the factual evidence that:
 - (a) justifies the agency's need for the proposed rule; and
 - (b) describes how the benefits of the rule meet the relevant statutory objectives and justify the rule's costs;
- (4) a list of less costly alternatives to the proposed rule and the reasons why the alternatives do not adequately address the problem to be solved by the proposed rule;
- (5) a list of alternatives to the proposed rule that were suggested as a result of public comment and the reasons why the alternatives do not adequately address the problem to be solved by the proposed rule;
- (6) a statement of whether existing rules have created or contributed to the problem the agency seeks to address with the proposed rule and, if existing rules have created or contributed to the problem, an explanation of why amendment or repeal of the rule creating or contributing to the problem is not a sufficient response; and
- (7) an agency plan for review of the rule no less than every ten (10) years to determine whether, based upon the evidence, there remains a need for the rule including, without limitation, whether:
 - (a) the rule is achieving the statutory objectives;
 - (b) the benefits of the rule continue to justify its costs; and
 - (c) the rule can be amended or repealed to reduce costs while continuing to achieve the statutory objectives.

Notice of Rulemaking

The Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission of the Department of Inspector General is proposing revisions to its Rules of Procedure of the Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission, which are authorized under Ark. Code Ann. §§ 25-15-203; 26-18-1112; 26-18-1115; and 26-18-1120.

The current Rules of Procedure were adopted in December 2022. After over a year of operations, the Commission proposes revisions to increase fairness, efficiency, and proceeding effectiveness. The revisions reflect practices and procedures; reduce prehearing requirements in small cases; provide standards for common filings; conform to 2023 legislation; adopt plain language; streamline procedures and forms; and provide special forms for joint refund offsets.

The proposed revisions are available on the Commission's website at https://ig.arkansas.gov/tax-appeals-commission/ or may be obtained by calling the Commission at 501-682-2741 or emailing tax-appeals-commission/ or may be obtained by calling the

The Commission is soliciting comments on the proposed revisions. Public comments must be submitted in writing by email to tacpubliccomments@arkansas.gov (preferred) or by delivery or mail to the Arkansas Tax Appeals Commission, 900 West Capitol Avenue, Suite 310, Little Rock, AR, 72201. All public comments must be received no later than September 3, 2024.

A public hearing will be held on August 20, 2024, at 2:00pm. In-person will be at the Bessie Moore Conference Room in the Arkansas State Library, 900 West Capitol Avenue, Suite 200, Little Rock, AR 72201. Contact the Commission for Microsoft Teams remote login information.

Samantha Blassingame Department of Inspector General Chief Counsel

Reason for Proposed Rule Revisions

The current Rules of Procedure were adopted in December 2022 just before the Tax Appeals Commission began hearing tax appeals. After over a year of hearings and operations, the Commission proposes revisions to increase efficiency and streamline procedures.

Summary of the Rule Revisions

The revisions reflect Commission practices; reduce prehearing requirements in small cases; provide standards for common filings; conform to 2023 legislation; adopt plain language; streamline forms; and provide special forms for joint refund offsets.